
Agenda for a meeting of the Regeneration and Economy 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be held on 
Tuesday, 26 September 2017 at 6.00 pm in Committee 
Room 1 - City Hall, Bradford
Members of the Committee – Councillors
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR LIBERAL 

DEMOCRAT 
AND 
INDEPENDENT

GREEN INDEPENDENT

Heseltine
Mallinson

Farley
Jamil
Nazir
Sharp

Fear H Hussain K Hussain

Alternates:
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR LIBERAL 

DEMOCRAT AND 
INDEPENDENT

GREEN

Pennington
Whiteley

Green
Johnson
H Khan
Salam

R Ahmed Warnes

Notes:
 This agenda can be made available in Braille, large print or tape format on request by 

contacting the Agenda contact shown below.
 The taking of photographs, filming and sound recording of the meeting is allowed except if 

Councillors vote to exclude the public to discuss confidential matters covered by Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972. Recording activity should be respectful to the conduct of 
the meeting and behaviour that disrupts the meeting (such as oral commentary) will not be 
permitted. Anyone attending the meeting who wishes to record or film the meeting's 
proceedings is advised to liaise with the Agenda Contact who will provide guidance and ensure 
that any necessary arrangements are in place. Those present who are invited to make spoken 
contributions to the meeting should be aware that they may be filmed or sound recorded.

 If any further information is required about any item on this agenda, please contact the officer 
named at the foot of that agenda item.

From: To:
Parveen Akhtar
City Solicitor
Agenda Contact: Asad Shah
Phone: 01274 432280
E-Mail: asad.shah@bradford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS

1.  ALTERNATE MEMBERS  (Standing Order 34)

The City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are 
attending the meeting in place of appointed Members.  

2.  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)

To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted 
members on matters to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure 
must include the nature of the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes 
apparent to the member during the meeting.

Notes:

(1) Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in 
discussion and voting unless the interest is a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or an interest which the Member feels would 
call into question their compliance with the wider principles set 
out in the Code of Conduct.  Disclosable pecuniary interests 
relate to the Member concerned or their spouse/partner.

(2) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months 
must not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget 
calculations, and must disclose at the meeting that this 
restriction applies to them.  A failure to comply with these 
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992.  

(3) Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not 
disclosable pecuniary interests but which they consider should 
be made in the interest of clarity.

(4) Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council 
Standing Order 44.

3.  INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS

(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by 
contacting the person shown after each agenda item.  Certain reports 
and background papers may be restricted.  



Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper 
should be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director 
whose name is shown on the front page of the report.  

If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.  

Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if 
you wish to appeal.  

(Asad Shah - 01274 432280)

4.  REFERRALS TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Any referrals that have been made to this Committee up to and including 
the date of publication of this agenda will be reported at the meeting.

B. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ACTIVITIES

5.  HOUSING AND HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY - PROGRESS 
UPDATE

‘A Place to Call Home: Housing and Homelessness Strategy for 
Bradford District 2014 – 2019’ was agreed by the full Council on 25 
March 2014. 

The report of the Assistant Director, Economy and Development 
(Document “F”) updates the committee on progress made towards 
the strategy objectives.

Recommended –

That Members note progress made towards the objectives of the 
Housing and Homelessness Strategy.

(Yusuf Karolia – 01274 434362)

1 - 14

6.  THE COUNCIL'S AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAMME

The report of the Strategic Director, Place (Document “G”) updates 
members on progress with the delivery of the Council’s Affordable 
Housing programme and advises members of the potential 
procurement of contracts with a value in excess of £2m associated with 
the delivery of the future programme.

Recommended –

That the report be noted.
(Julie Rhodes – 01274 431163)

15 - 22



7.  REGENERATION AND ECONOMY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2017-18

The report of the Chair of the Regeneration and Economy Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee (Document “H”) presents the Committee’s 
Work Programme 2017-18.

Recommended –

That the Work programme 2017-18 continues to be regularly 
reviewed during the year.

(Licia Woodhead – 01274 432119)

23 - 28

THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER



 

 
 

Report of the Assistant Director to the meeting of 
Regeneration and Economy Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to be held on 26 September 2017 

F 
 
 
Subject:   
 
HOUSING AND HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY - PROGRESS UPDATE  
 
 
Summary statement: 
 
‘A Place to Call Home: Housing and Homelessness Strategy for Bradford District 2014 – 
2019’ was agreed by the full Council on 25 March 2014.  
 
This report updates the committee on progress made towards the strategy objectives.  
 
 
 

Assistant Director: Shelagh O’Neill, 
Dept of Place 

Portfolio:   
 
Regeneration, Planning and Transport 
 

Report Contact:  Yusuf Karolia, Head 
of Service - Housing Access, Strategy 
& Homelessness 
 
Phone: (01274) 434362 
E-mail: yusuf.karolia@bradford.gov.uk 

Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Regeneration and Economy 

 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5/



 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1  ‘A Place to Call Home: Housing and Homelessness Strategy for Bradford District 

2014 – 2019’ was endorsed by the Council’s Executive on 11 March 2014, and 
agreed by the full Council at its meeting on 25 March 2014.  

 
1.2  Members of this committee agreed to request future annual reports on the strategy. 

This is the third such report, and provides an update on progress made towards the 
strategy objectives. 

 
2. BACKGROUND  
 
2.1  The Housing and Homelessness Strategy is partnership-led and jointly owned by 

the Council and the Bradford Housing Partnership, reflecting the reality of the role 
played by a wide range of organisations and agencies in delivering the housing and 
homelessness objectives contained within the strategy. This means that whilst the 
Council is a key delivery partner, it is not responsible for delivering all of the actions 
and relies on the co-operation of its partners for successful implementation. 

 
2.2  The approach taken in the strategy is to set out some broad objectives which act as 

a framework and steering document to influence the Council and its partners’ 
priorities, delivery programmes and business plans. Individual, more detailed action 
plans are then drawn up to sit underneath the overarching strategy framework, such 
as the Empty Homes Action Plan which was endorsed by this committee in 
February 2017. 

 
2.3  This Strategy complements and sits within the Bradford Council Plan 2016 – 2020, 

providing focus and direction to the objective within that Plan which is ‘Decent 
Homes that people can afford to live in’. 

 
2.4  The Strategy has the following vision:- 
 

Everyone in the District should have a place to call home which is suitable for 
their needs and in which they can thrive.  

 
2.5  The objectives in the Strategy are:- 
 

More Homes: new homes; better use of existing stock/empty homes; and 
appropriate infrastructure to support the growth 
 
Safe & Healthy Homes: housing which is free from hazards; support people to stay 
healthy; adaptations to stay independent; work with landlords and lettings agents; 
tackle blight of empty homes.  
 
Affordable Homes: Adequate supply of affordable homes to buy or rent in relation 
to incomes; affordable warmth and energy efficient. 
 
Support independence and prevent homelessness: support for people to live 
independently and prevent homelessness; raising aspirations and removing barriers 
to employment to sustain housing independence  

 

Page 2



 

2.6  The success measures in the Strategy, against which performance is measured, 
are:-  

 
• Increase in net additional homes 
• Reduction in number of long term empty homes 
• Increase in number of private sector homes where housing conditions have 

improved through intervention 
• More homes adapted 
• Increase in number of new affordable homes delivered 
• More energy efficient homes and fewer people in fuel poverty 
• Increase in average incomes across the district 
• Improvement in the number of housing advice cases which successfully and 

sustainably prevent people becoming homeless  
• Reduction in the number of homeless people placed in Bed and Breakfast and 

shorter says in Temporary Accommodation 
• Targeting support at those who need it most and at the right time 

 
 
3. PERFORMANCE AGAINST SUCCESS MEASURES  
 
3.1  Increase in net additional homes  
 

In 2014/15 there were 1,134 homes delivered, 1,338 in 2015/16, and 1,448 in 
2016/17. Despite a steady increase in recent years, current housing delivery is only 
around half the level required - the new Core Strategy demonstrates a requirement 
for 2,476 new homes per year.  

 
3.2  Reduction in number of long term empty homes  
 

The number of long term empty dwellings fell by 5% to 3,944 in October 2016 from 
4,154 the year before. This represents a reduction in the number of long-term 
empty properties of 3,358 since 2009/10 which was the baseline figure for the 
Empty Homes Strategy. Bringing empty homes back into use also generates New 
Homes Bonus and has helped generate around 40% of the Council’s £48.5 million 
new homes bonus in the seven financial years from 2011-2018. 
 

3.3  Increase in number of private sector homes where ho using conditions have 
improved through intervention 

 
In 2016/17 947 private sector homes were improved following intervention.  342 of 
these homes had children living in them. In 2016/17 the way that this measure is 
calculated was changed so that this now just looks at the number of homes 
improved following intervention from the Council’s Housing Operations team.  Prior 
to 2016/17 the measure included other interventions, such as Government funded 
home energy schemes, which meant that the figure was higher (1330 in 2015/16 
and 2167 in 2014/15).   Therefore the measure had been previously largely 
dependent on the availability of Government funded initiatives, which were mainly 
outside of the Council’s control.  A direct comparison of the elements included in the 
figure for 2016/17 with the previous year, shows a 5.7% increase compared to 
2015/16.   

 

Page 3



 

3.4  More homes adapted 
 
Disabled Facilities Grants completions continue its upward trend with the total 
increase over 4 years of 79%.  In 2013/14 there were 190 Disabled Facilities Grants 
(DFGs) completed, which rose to 236 in 2014/15, to 280 in 2015/16 and then 340 in 
2016/17. In 2016/17 the service received 561 new referrals for DFGs compared to 
603 in 2015/16, 489 in 2014/15 and 357 in 2013/14.   
 

3.5  Increase in number of new affordable homes delivere d 
 

In 2016/17, 184 affordable homes were delivered across the District and in addition, 
18 specialist temporary accommodation units were completed. This number is a 
significant increase compared with 2015/16 (92) but still some way short of the total 
for 2014/15 (258).  The dip in delivery in 2015/16 probably reflects a range of 
factors including investment decisions by registered providers during the economic 
downturn and uncertainties over viability due to the social housing rent reduction, 
fewer Section 106 agreements with developers, and the gap between national 
Affordable Housing Programmes.  However, it is likely that the pace of delivery will 
continue as the 2015/18 affordable homes programme is rolled out.   

 
3.6  More energy-efficient homes and fewer people in fue l poverty  
 

Fuel poverty continues to be a significant issue in the Bradford District. The latest 
figures available from the Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy 
show that 30,380 households in the District were considered to be in fuel poverty in 
2015, which at 15.0% is significantly higher than 11.0% nationally.  The latest fuel 
poverty figure also shows an increase from 13.2% in 2014 which had fallen from 
14.1% in 2013. Bradford has a relatively high level of fuel poverty due to the high 
level of deprivation in parts of the District, low household incomes and the poor 
quality of the dwelling stock. 

 
3.7  Increase in average incomes across the district 
 

The median weekly income for a full time worker living in Bradford in 2016 was 
£473.50 according to ONS data, which continues to be behind the regional and UK 
medians of £498.30 and £538.70 respectively. There has been a steady 
improvement compared to 5 years ago, as the Bradford average is now £19 closer 
to the Yorkshire and Humber median, and £15 closer to the UK figure than it was in 
2011.  In Bradford there are more people than national and regional averages 
employed in lower paid elementary occupations and fewer managers and directors 
than average, and there has been very little change in employment types in the 
District for over a decade. 

 
3.8  Improvement in the number of housing advice cases w hich successfully and 

sustainably prevent people becoming homeless 
 

There have been large increases in the number of homeless preventions and reliefs 
reported by the Housing Options team over the life of the strategy, almost doubling 
from 2013/14 to 2016/17 to 4,918.     
 
 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 

Page 4



 

Preventions 
and Reliefs 2,091 3,803 3,752 2,493 2,636 3,302 

/16 
4,918 

             Preventions and reliefs due to casewor k by Bradford MDC’s Housing Options Team (Bradford MDC Data) 
 
The number of households accepted as homeless with a full duty for the Council to 
assist has also increased over the life of the strategy to 413, a 19% increase from 
2013/14 to 2016/17. Rising presentations and acceptances reflect to some extent 
the rise in all Housing Options case work, with the number of cases rising 28% to 
8,176 over the life of the strategy so far (2013/14 to 2016/17).       

 
3.9  Reduction in number of homeless people placed in Be d and Breakfast and 

shorter stays in Temporary Accommodation  
 

The average length of stay in Bed & Breakfast (B&B) accommodation has reduced 
steadily, from 13 days in 2013/14, to 12 in 2014/15, 9.5 days in 2015/16 down to 
8.6 days in 2016/17. The number of families placed in B&B reduced from 603 to 
580 in the same time period, a decrease of 4%.  For households placed in any type 
of Temporary Accommodation (TA), which is inclusive of B&B, the average length 
of stay rose from 19 in 2015/16 to 22 in 2016/17, however last year’s figure is still a 
58% reduction on the 53 days average stay in 2013/14. So far the success 
measure of reducing B&B placements and the average length of TA stay are both 
being demonstrably met over the life of the strategy.  

 
4.  COMMENTARY ON PROGRESS  
 

Objective 1: More Homes 
 
4.1   The Council is committed to ensure that the District meets its need for homes. In 

this respect the new Local Plan Core Strategy for the District (adopted 18 July 
2017) makes clear that the Council will be ensuring sufficient land is identified to 
meet the district-wide requirement for at least 42,100 new homes in the period up to 
2030. This figure includes the backlog for under-delivery in recent years. The Core 
Strategy sets out a range of policies to support development in line with the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development in the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF), and sets out clear policies to support well designed dwellings 
with a mix of houses which meet the various needs of the community to 2030 
including provision of affordable housing.  Further information on the Core Strategy 
can be found at: https://www.bradford.gov.uk/planning-and-building-
control/planning-policy/core-strategy-dpd/ 

 
4.2   During 2016 and early 2017 there was a general upturn in the number of planning 

consents given for new housing developments with keen interest in areas such as 
Silsden, Steeton and West Bradford. Further consents have been given in the 
Applerley Bridge area following the opening of the new railway station and a 
number of sites have been promoted on land previously held for other uses such as 
employment purposes. Outline consent was previously given by the Secretary of 
State for over 400 houses in Bingley (Sty Lane) and reserved matters applications 
are expected for this key site later in in 2017. Reserved matters applications are 
also expected for the substantial housing site at the former Fagley Quarry with joint 
house builders having agreed to take this site forward for circa 550 houses. In July 
2017 the second phase of the Canal Road Urban Village housing project was 
submitted for reserved matters (145 houses). In Shipley at Crag Road 85 new 

Page 5



 

houses have been consented in July 2017 with an anticipated start date before the 
end of the year. 
 

4.3   A number of new housing schemes are well under way in Queensbury, Denholme, 
Cullingworth, Wyke, Allerton and Apperley Bridge where sales values continue to 
offer developers reasonable returns and some previously stalled sites have become 
more viable. There continues to be interest in sites in Bradford City Centre and the 
urban areas of Bradford but land values and developer viability issues still provide 
challenges limiting the number of consented schemes generating further interest 
and resulting in starts on site. 
 

4.4  In the New Bolton Woods (NBW) area, the Council’s joint venture company Canal 
Road Urban Village Ltd. (CRUVL), established with private development partner 
Urbo Regeneration Ltd., have already delivered a first phase of residential 
development providing 50 new homes (including 20 Affordable Rented units). It is 
expected that the second phase of development will commence in 2017 and will 
provide some 3,000 sq m of retail/commercial space off Stanley Road that will 
anchor the new Local Centre element of the scheme.  Following securing an outline 
planning permission for the NBW Regeneration Masterplan, CRUVL submitted an 
application for full planning permission in July 2017 for 145 homes to be built by 
Keepmoat, as part of 500/600 expected in total for the second phase.  

 
4.5 As part of the Homes & Community Agency (HCA) Affordable Homes Programme 

(AHP) 2015-18 Registered Providers in the district have successfully secured 
funding to deliver 766 homes.  This includes 157 homes for rent that the Council will 
deliver on various sites in its ownership across the district. Work on delivering the 
2015/18 programme is progressing with 43 properties that the Council has been 
developing being completed in August. 

 
 4.6 The Council has also secured HCA grant to improve the housing offer for people 

threatened with homelessness and to help older people with care or support needs 
to live independently. A Homelessness Change Fund 2015-17 bid was successful, 
and this is being used to refurbish specialist hostel accommodation delivered by 
Bradford Cyrenians.  A Care and Support Specialised Housing fund bid to deliver a 
69 unit extra care facility in Oakworth, Keighley, was also announced as successful 
in 2016.  Further HCA funding has been secured by the Council through the HCA’s 
Shared Ownership and Affordable Housing programme 2016/21 to develop 50 units 
of affordable housing on a Rent to Buy basis by 2021. 

 
4.7 The Council’s Development Partner, promoting the residential elements of the Crag 

Road, Shipley redevelopment scheme, received consent in July 2017 following a 
Detailed Planning Application for a ‘Phase 1’ development that will provide 85 new 
homes including the 50 ‘Starter Homes’ that are the subject of funding assistance 
received by the Council from the HCA.  Preliminary site investigation and 
remediation works have been commenced on the site, and it is hoped that 
construction works could commence by the end of the year. 
 

4.8 Demand for the Empty Homes service continues to be high with 700 service 
requests being responded to in 2016/17, increasing 18% from 595 in 2015/16. The 
work of the Empty Homes Team is a mixture of this reactive and proactive work, the 
latter generated from the Council’s own data and surveys of the district. The team 
are dealing with approximately 1,000 empty properties at any one time, and 

Page 6



 

influences a large number of owners to bring empty homes back into use.  For the 
year 2016/17, 134 properties were brought back into use through direct intervention 
by the Empty Homes Team which is a 17% increase on the previous year. 
 

4.9  Officers in the Housing Service will utilise appropriate products from the full range of 
options available to them to try to encourage owners to bring their empty homes 
back into use, however in some cases officers need to utilise the highest sanction 
against uncooperative owners which is compulsory purchase.  Since 2010, the 
service has voluntarily acquired 30 properties and compulsorily purchased 20 
properties. 15 cases are currently on-going of which 11 are Compulsory Purchase 
Orders and 4 are voluntary acquisitions. 
 

4.10  The Housing Operations service continues to work in partnership with external 
organisations to provide the opportunity to purchase empty properties and bring 
them back into use as rented accommodation for young and vulnerable people in 
addition to providing support to those young people.  These organisations currently 
include the Bradford Youthbuild Trust, Centrepoint, Arise Yorkshire and other 
smaller charities. 
 

4.11  The Bradford Youthbuild Trust have purchased a cluster of 4 empty properties from 
the Council (acquired through a combination of Compulsory Purchase and 
Voluntary Acquisition) in a deteriorating street of 10 properties, and have used their 
renovation as a training facility for young people learning construction / repair 
trades. This project has transformed the street and provided a solid and sustainable 
future, whereas without intervention the road would have otherwise continued to 
decline and potentially been abandoned. 
 

4.12    Prior to 2015 the only indicator relating to empty homes reported on the ‘snap shot’ 
number of long term empty homes in the district. The indicator did not easily 
illustrate how many empty properties were no longer empty in the district or allow us 
to appreciate the scale of the ‘churn’ of empty properties and the impact this would 
have on communities. Consequently, in 2015, the Council introduced an additional 
performance indicator relating to empty homes.  The additional indicator reports on 
the total number of long term empty properties that have ceased to be empty. The 
figure is reported on a monthly basis as a rolling 12 month figure. The July 2017 
outturn for the indicator is 4,774, meaning that in the year June 2016 to July 2017, 
just under five thousand long term empty properties became occupied. 

 
Objective 2: Safe and Healthy Homes 

 
4.13   In July 2015 the Building Research Establishment Ltd (BRE) completed a stock 

modelling exercise for Bradford Council which is intended to support the delivery of 
the Housing and Homelessness Strategy and enable a targeted intervention 
approach to improving housing.  BRE identified that 18% of all private sector 
housing and 27% of properties in the private rented sector have the highest level of 
health and safety hazards and that the estimated cost of mitigating these hazards is 
£78 million.   

 
4.14 The Council continues to tackle disrepair issues in the private sector and in 2016/17 

took action to deal with 4,710 specific health and safety hazards, which is 13.8% 
higher than in 2015/16. This increase reflects increasing levels of demand and also 
proactive work to tackle areas or types of property which pose significant health and 

Page 7



 

safety risks.  In January 2016 the Housing Standards team was successful in 
securing £45,000 of funding from the Department of Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) to carry out intensive enforcement inspections of flats above 
commercial premises along three main arterial routes into Bradford; Leeds Road, 
Manchester Road and Great Horton Road, and to target properties with outstanding 
Housing Act Notices on a district wide basis. 

 
4.15   The Council provides adaptations to support people with disabilities to live in their 

homes. The number of completed grants has continued to increase significantly in 
2016/17, completions 21% higher than the previous year.  Generally, the number of 
initial enquiries is also increasing (although there was a fall of 7.5% in 2016/17 
compared to 2015/16) - increasing demand, linked also to a perceived increasing 
complexity of adaptations needed, is putting significant pressure both on the 
adaptations team and the Council’s capital resources 

 
4.16   For DFGs the Council offers an in house agency service which over 80% of clients 

choose to use. The agency service appoints a contractor and takes responsibility 
for managing all works on site.  On completion of works a 12 month defects liability 
is provided.  The service has a framework of contractors to deliver agency work at 
more competitive rates resulting in 20% more cases being delivered for the same 
budget than before the framework was used. During 2015/16 the Council has 
completed a procurement process for the contractors on the DFG framework.  The 
new framework is now in place for the next 2 years (with an option to extend it for 
another year).   

 
Objective 3: Affordable Homes 

 
4.17   As well as undertaking developments itself, the Council works with a number of 

partners to deliver new affordable housing. Both the Council and its partners were 
particularly successful in securing grant support under the HCA’s Affordable 
Housing Programme for 2015 – 2018 (AHP2) for 766 affordable homes.  The 
Council will be delivering a total of 157 units on 7 sites as part of the programme, 
including 18 supported temporary accommodation housing units for homeless 
households at Clergy House and Jermyn Court, which were completed and 
occupied early this year.  In addition the Council will be delivering 69 extra care 
units for the elderly and 49 market sale units. 

 
4.18   Work to deliver domestic energy efficiency retro fit programmes to homes within the 

Bradford District has been significantly affected in the past few years by changes to 
national policy and the resulting reduction of funding available from the Energy 
Company Obligation (ECO) scheme. However, Bradford Council has been 
successful in obtaining additional funding to deliver various initiatives to provide 
domestic home energy efficiency measures to private sector households. These 
have included:   

 
• Green Deal Fund Community Scheme- Working with the WYCA Better Homes 

Yorkshire programme, funding was obtained for external cavity wall insulation to 
treat ‘Right to Buy’ private sector homes, with 197 measures completed since 
2014, along with 31 inner city households experiencing fuel poverty receiving 
energy efficiency measures (mainly ‘roof in the roof insulation’). 
 

Page 8



 

• Central Heating Fund Project- Funding obtained to provide 46 households 
experiencing fuel poverty with central heating, along with practical assistance to 
use the system efficiently and source a competitive energy supplier. 

 
• Tackling Fuel Poverty Programme- The Better Homes Yorkshire Partnership 

successfully bid for £5 m from the Local Growth Fund in July 2016.  Phase 1 
includes £1.2 m of external wall insulation to tackle fuel poverty in deprived 
areas of Bradford, with 62 measures completed in the Thorpe Edge area, 43 in 
the Bierley locality, 5 in Delph Hill, 5 in the Parkside area and a further 23 
measures due in 2017/18.     

 
4.19  Bradford Council is part of the Leeds City Region (LCR) Better Homes partnership, 

set up by the West Yorkshire Combined Authority in April 2015, consisting of 10 
LCR local authorities, the WYCA and a private sector partner, Keepmoat 
collaboratively with Fortem. This partnership delivers the Better Home Yorkshire 
programme which exclusively offers Local Authority backed domestic energy 
efficiency measures to private sector households throughout the LCR. The Council 
has also worked with Public Health to support the local voluntary sector through the 
Warm Homes Healthy People Partnership to offer free home energy advice to 
households at risk of fuel poverty.  Bradford Council is also working in partnership 
with neighbouring local authorities to deliver further initiatives to address fuel 
poverty and promote affordable warmth in the district. These include: 

  
• White Rose Energy- In January 2017, the Executive approved Bradford Council 

to enter into a partnership with Leeds City Council to promote White Rose 
Energy, a not for profit energy services company providing fair energy prices to 
residential properties across the region.  ‘Low cost’ energy tariffs will be offered 
to all residents, including those on pre-payment meters by enabling them to 
switch to the fairest pre-payment tariff or credit meter. 

 
• Energy Repayment Loans- The Council has been working on a regional basis 

to develop an Energy Repayment Loan (ERL), which was approved by the 
Executive in December 2016. ERLs are interest free and target homeowners 
who may struggle to access loan finance, to enable them to benefit from energy 
efficiency measure through national and regional programmes. 

 
4.20   The Government has abandoned the Zero Carbon Homes building regulations that 

were due to come into force in 2016. This will significantly hamper the delivery of 
higher energy performance standards in new homes, particularly where developers 
already experience significant viability issues due to depressed retail prices. 
 
Objective 4: Support Independence and Prevent Homel essness 

 

4.21  The No Second Night Out (NSNO) service, commissioned in October 2015,     
provides holistic support for rough sleepers, including street outreach, emergency 
accommodation and assistance into settled housing. In the first year of the NSNO 
service, 439 clients accessed the service, of which 325 were provided with 
temporary accommodation and 169 moved on to more secure accommodation.  
Within its first year the NSNO service also provided specific cold weather provision 
for 161 clients when the temperature was forecast to fall to 0°C or lower during the 
night. 

 

Page 9



 

4.22  The Housing Options service has improved its private rented sector offer via the 
introduction of a Private Sector Lettings Scheme, to enhance the range of 
affordable, decent quality private rented homes available for people in housing 
need.  Since the Private Sector Lettings Scheme was established in November 
2015, over 1,470 households have been referred onto the scheme, and nearly half 
of these have been offered private rented accommodation resulting in 287 new 
tenancies created.   

 
4.23    The 18 new units of temporary accommodation for homeless households which 

were completed in January 2017 using HCA grant funding, are now fully occupied. 
The accommodation, at Clergy House and Jermyn Court in the city centre, gives the 
Council enhanced capacity and flexibility to better meet the short term 
accommodation needs of homeless households, providing a suitable offer to meet a 
range of needs.  

 
4.24  Bradford has been successful in increasing the rate of homelessness preventions 

and reliefs over the past three years. Compared to the total number of households 
in the District, the Council’s Housing Options team managed over 23.9 preventions 
and reliefs per 1,000 households in 2016/17, rising from 16.1 per 1,000 in 2015/16, 
and 12.3 per 1,000 in 2013/14.  The prevention and relief rate for England was 8.6 
per 1,000 in 2016/17 falling slightly from 8.7 in 2015/16 and 10.2 in 2013/14.      

 
4.25  The re-commissioning of housing related support (HRS) was undertaken throughout 

2016 in line with key budget decisions made by the Council. HRS provides a 
number of critical services which target homelessness, including accommodation 
based support and floating support for key client groups. Contracts have been 
awarded for the provision of services for clients with multiple needs, high risk ex-
offenders and young people at risk including teenage parents. These re-
commissioned services have now all commenced. An innovative ‘Gateway’ to HRS 
was launched during 2016, this now provides all clients with a single point of access 
to housing advice, homelessness and housing-related support, all delivered through 
a single assessment undertaken by Housing Options. All accommodation and 
support placements are now co-ordinated and administered through this one 
system. 

 
5.   KEY FUTURE CHALLENGES  
 
   There has been demonstrable progress towards the objectives in the strategy, 

which has resulted in holistic improvements to the housing offer in the district.  
Despite these improvements, the Council and its partners face a number of 
significant future challenges in relation to housing and homelessness. These 
include:- 

 
5.1  The Housing and Planning Act  was approved in Parliament in 2016 and key 

elements of this will be implemented in 2017/18. This is a wide-ranging piece of 
legislation that will have significant impacts on a number of housing and planning 
activities including housing enforcement in the private rented sector. In particular, 
the Council will now be expected to impose civil penalties (fines) for non-
compliance with housing enforcement notices and impose banning orders on rogue 
landlords (who will then be recorded on a national database). There has been little 
detail on what these powers will entail and the lead-in time for implementation is 
expected to be short, even though this may involve significant changes in the way 

Page 10



 

that housing enforcement is currently conducted.  
 
5.2   The Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 , which received royal assent, will place 

new duties on councils to prevent homelessness regardless of whether or not the 
household is considered to be in ‘priority need’.  The new legislation is expected to 
significantly increase both the number of customers that the Housing Options teams 
will deal with, and also the volume of casework undertaken to deal with a typical 
case. There will also be increased pressure to source a wider range of 
accommodation options for people in housing need.  The new act is expected to be 
implemented from April 2018. 

 
5.3 Continued welfare reform  measures will have a greater impact on Bradford 

compared to the country as a whole due to Bradford’s higher proportion of larger 
households.  The lowering of the benefit cap to £20k per year will affect most 
families that have 3 children or more, and Child Tax Credits will be limited to 2 
children from April 2017 for children born from that date. Other major reforms 
include measures to peg rents in the social sector to the Local Housing Allowance 
(LHA) rate from April 2019, and under 35 year old single people being only entitled 
to the shared accommodation rate of LHA. These reforms will impact adversely on 
both families and single people caught within the new rules.  The roll out of 
Universal Credit to all households over the coming years along with the package of 
welfare reform measures, will compound housing affordability issues for many 
households, and also make it more difficult to find sustainable housing solutions for 
many of the households affected.           

 
5.4 In relation to the ‘More Homes ’ objective, there remains a real question about 

whether current market conditions, coupled with rising construction costs and a lack 
of construction skills will give developers the confidence to develop the additional 
new homes that the district needs.  The Housing White Paper seeks to address 
issues fettering housing supply, however there is little detail provided about 
changes to planning policy, and it is not yet possible to predict its likely success.    

 
5.5   In relation to affordable homes , the proposed 10% affordable home ownership 

policy on new sites with 11 or more dwellings would reduce the number of new 
affordable homes delivered through s.106 agreements, and it is the affordable rent 
tenures that better meet the district’s housing needs currently.   Viability for 
developers has been a longstanding issue in Bradford, and in terms of affordable 
housing delivery, the lack of certainty over future rent income streams and the LHA 
cap compromises the supply of new affordable rented housing.  

 
5.6   Despite sizeable reductions in the number of long term empty homes , Bradford still 

has comparatively high levels compared to regional and national averages. 
Therefore there needs to be a continued focus on bringing long term empty homes 
back into use, as they are not only a wasted resource, but can also have a 
detrimental impact on our neighbourhoods.  To assist with this, the Empty Homes 
Action Plan has been formally reviewed and updated and now sits under the 
Housing and Homelessness Strategy – see 
https://www.bradford.gov.uk/media/3793/empty-homes-action-plan-feb-2017-
final.pdf.   

 
5.7 Whilst owner occupation  is still the preferred tenure for many, low income 

households struggle to access mortgages. The housing market across the district is 

Page 11



 

complex – in some areas there isn’t enough of the right type of accommodation, 
particularly affordable housing and homes suitable for our ageing population, but 
there are also some areas with a concentration of poorer quality, lower demand 
private housing. 

 
5.8   There continues to be insufficient investment in ageing private sector housing  

stock, either privately rented or owner occupied. While the Council has been 
actively promoting the availability of Home Appreciation Loans for eligible low 
income owner occupiers, there is an on-going need to better co-ordinate resources 
between health and housing agencies, in recognition of the cost to NHS services of 
people living in homes which are hazardous for health – e.g. properties with 
hazards associated with damp, excess cold and falls.  

 
5.9   The Government is making big changes to the way funding for supported 

housing  is administered from 2019. Supported housing rents will be capped at the 
LHA rate from April 2019, but where care or support is provided, making the rent 
often much higher than LHA rate, the difference will then be covered by a grant 
administered by the local authority. There are no details available yet on how the 
‘top-up’ grant will be calculated or administered, and as a consequence there is 
great uncertainty within the supported housing sector, and the potential that new 
schemes will be shelved, or existing schemes wound down, if there is no certainty 
over long-term funding. The supported housing sector in the district provides a huge 
amount of essential accommodation services, including sheltered housing, and 
housing for many other vulnerable groups including homeless people, people with 
learning disabilities and people fleeing domestic violence.   

 
5.10 There is continued demand for adapted properties , and homes suitable for people 

with learning disabilities and other complex needs.  With the over-65 population 
estimated to increase by 59% from 2014 to 2039 (ONS subnational population 
projections), these upward trends are unlikely to diminish.  

 
6. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL  
 
6.1  There are no direct financial or resource implications arising from this report. 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
7.1  There are no significant risk or governance issues arising from this report. 
 
8. LEGAL APPRAISAL  
 
8.1  There are no significant legal issues arising from this report. 
 
9. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY  
 

The Housing and Homelessness Strategy sets out an explicit commitment to 
reducing inequalities, and recognises that housing has a big part to play in 
promoting equality of access and support, and in tackling inequalities.  
 

9.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS  

Page 12



 

 
The strategy seeks to support the sustainability of the district and its communities 
through prioritising the provision of suitable, affordable housing to meet the needs 
of our growing population and by retrofitting existing dwelling stock to improve its 
long-term viability. 

 
9.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 

Environmental sustainability and energy efficiency are key features within the 
strategy. The strategy aims to address the need to improve energy efficiency within 
the district’s housing stock, and to promote the adoption of low and zero carbon 
technologies in new homes. 

 
9.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  
 

No direct community safety implications, however the strategy does seek to support 
the creation of safe, welcoming and sustainable neighbourhoods 

 
9.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT  
 

The Human Rights dimension of housing is recognised in the United Nations 
Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights, which includes the right of 
everyone to an adequate standard of living for himself and his family, including 
adequate housing. The United Kingdom is legally bound by this treaty. The Council 
also has regard to good practice in housing particularly those that adhere to 
guidance contained in: ‘Deciding Rights - Applying the Human Rights Act to Good 
Practice in Local Authority Decision-Making’ (LGA). 

 
9.6 TRADE UNION 
 

There are no trade union implications arising from this report. 
 
9.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no specific ward implications identified, as the strategy is district-wide in 
its focus. However, the development of many programmes and projects relating to 
housing development, housing improvements, housing support and neighbourhood 
development is focused on specific localities. The successful implementation of the 
strategy will generate social and economic benefits for all wards across the district. 

 
10. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS  

 
None 

 
11. OPTIONS 
 

There are no options being presented in this report. 
 
12. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
12.1  That Members note progress made towards the objectives of the Housing and 

Homelessness Strategy. 

Page 13



 

 
12.2  That Members continue to receive an annual review of progress against success 

measures outlined in the Housing and Homelessness Strategy. 
 
13. APPENDICES 

 
None 

 
14. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS  
 

‘A Place to Call Home: Housing and Homelessness Strategy for Bradford District 
2014 – 19’ - see: 
http://www.bradford.gov.uk/NR/rdonlyres/06C952E8-DA02-4E79-A9F3-
AD1DDF02365F/0/HousingandHomelessnessStrategy.pdf  

 
‘Tackling Empty Homes in the Bradford District - Action Plan 2017 – 2019’ see:- 
https://www.bradford.gov.uk/media/3793/empty-homes-action-plan-feb-2017-final.pdf 

 
 

Page 14



 

 
 
 

Report of the Strategic Director of Place to the me eting 
of Regeneration and Economy Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to be held on September 26 2017 

G 
 
 
Subject:   
 
THE COUNCIL’S AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAMME 
 
 
Summary statement: 
 
This is a report provided for information to: 
 

• Update members on progress with the delivery of the  Council’s Affordable 
Housing programme and  

• To advise members of the potential procurement of c ontracts with a value in 
excess of £2m associated with the delivery of the f uture programme. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Steve Hartley, Strategic Director 
Place 
 

Portfolio:   
 
Regeneration, Housing, Planning & 
Transport 
 

Report Contact:  Julie Rhodes, 
Principal Officer Housing 
Phone: (01274) 431163 
E-mail: Julie.rhodes@bradford.gov.uk 

Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Regeneration and Economy 

 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6/



 

 
 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This is a report provided for information to: 
 

• Update members on progress with the delivery of the Council’s Affordable Housing 
programme and  

• To advise members of the potential procurement of contracts with a value in excess of £2m 
associated with the delivery of the future programme. 

 
 
2. BACKGROUND  
 
2.1 The Executive at its meetings on July 22nd 2011, January 14th 2014 and November 8th 2016 

approved bids for investment support by the Council to the Homes and Communities 
Agency (HCA) as part of the 2011/15 and 2015/18 Affordable Housing programmes and 
the 2016/21 Shared Ownership and Affordable Housing Programme (SOAHP). 

 
2.2 Following receipt of this approval, the Council was successful in securing grant allocations 
 to develop new affordable housing through both the 2011/15 and 2015/18 Affordable 
 Housing programmes and subsequently entered into contract with the HCA to deliver these 
 new affordable homes for rent. 
 
2.3 Delivery of the 2011/15 programme enabled the Council to develop 81 new affordable 
 homes for rent across 4 sites.  These are in addition to the 95 properties that the Council 
 had previously developed at Longfield Drive and Beech Grove.  All of these 176 properties 
 are now completed and occupied as affordable rented housing. 
 
2.4 Delivery of the 2015/18 programme will result in the development of a further 139 new 
 affordable homes for rent along with a further 18 units of housing that will be used as 
 temporary accommodation for homeless people, a total of 157. 
 
2.5 Delivery of the 2015/18 programme is ongoing.  The programme involves the delivery of 7 
 schemes across 6 sites as outlined in the table below: 
 
  

Scheme  Number of affordable 
homes provided 

Status  

Avenham Way, Bradford 16 On site 
Ripley Street, Bradford  15 Completed 
Cliffe Lane, Baildon (Phase 1) 20 Completed 
Cliffe Lane, Baildon (Phase 2) 13 On site 
Braithwaite Road, Keighley 36 Planning permission 

obtained 
Keighley Road, Oakworth 39 On site 
Clergy House/Jermyn Court, 
Bradford (scheme to provide 
temporary housing for 
homeless people) 

18 Completed 

Total  157  
 

Page 16



 

 
 
2.6 All of these schemes are scheduled to be completed by Autumn 2018.   

At September 2017, 3 of the schemes have been completed (Clergy House/Jermyn Court, 
Ripley Street and Cliffe Lane (phase 1)), 3 schemes are on site (Avenham Way, Bradford, 
Cliffe Lane, Baildon (phase 2) and Keighley Road, Oakworth and planning consent has 
been obtained for the remaining scheme at Braithwaite Road, Keighley. 

 
2.7 Following receipt of Executive approval to bid for HCA funding through the Shared 

Ownership and Affordable Housing Programme (SOAHP) in November 2016, the Council 
secured HCA funding for an indicative bid to deliver a programme of 50 units of affordable 
housing.  Since then the Council has developed a larger proposed programme of 173 new 
homes, 138 of which would be affordable, across 6 sites.  This proposal will be considered 
at PAG on September 7th 2017.  Following which the Council will, subject to PAG approval, 
submit a further bid to the HCA to secure funding for this larger programme.  

 
 
 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 Following the stock transfer of its previous housing stock in 2003 the Council no longer 

retains any housing management staff.  The Council has therefore procured a registered 
housing provider to undertake the housing management role for its new housing stock.  
Following a successful procurement exercise in 2016, Incommunities has been appointed 
to undertake this role for the Council’s affordable housing for a 5 year period.  The revenue 
costs of this contract are funded from the rental income from the properties. 

 
3.2 The provision of temporary accommodation for homeless people forms part of the 

Supporting People programme.  The management of the new accommodation at  Clergy 
House/Jermyn Court is therefore being provided under contract through the Supporting 
People programme.  Following a successful procurement exercise Horton Housing has 
been appointed to undertake this role. The revenue costs of this contract for Clergy 
House/Jermyn Court are funded from the rental income from the properties. 

 
3.3 In its Strategic Housing role the Council also monitors the delivery of affordable housing 

across the district.  In 2016/17, an additional 163 units of affordable housing were delivered 
in the district outside of the Council’s own programme.  Of these, 138 units were delivered 
by other registered providers under the Homes and Communities Affordable Housing 
programme and a further 25 units were delivered using section 106 contributions. 

 
 
 
4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL  
 
4.1 In addition to prudential borrowing, the financial model under which the affordable housing 

programmes have been developed is dependent on the rental income that can be 
generated from the properties and on cross subsidy from properties developed for sale.    

 
4.2 The 139 units of affordable housing to be delivered through the 2015/18 programme attract 

£25K of HCA grant per unit.  In order to deliver a programme based on this grant rate, the 
Council has developed a total of 188 homes.  It was originally intended to sell 49 of these 
on the open market and to use the sales receipts to subsidise the delivery of the remaining 
139 rented units. However a re-evaluation of the programme has identified that the model 

Page 17



 

can sustain 8 additional rented units should additional grant from the HCA be secured.  The 
Council is therefore preparing an additional bid to the HCA to deliver an additional 8 units of 
affordable housing for rent at the Cliffe Lane, Baildon site.  Should this bid be successful 
this will increase the number of affordable units delivered through the 2015/18 programme 
to 147. 

 
4.3 Following Executive approval to bid for HCA grant the financial model for each programme 

is taken to the Council’s Project Appraisal Group (PAG).  Capital funding to deliver the 
programmes is then taken to full Council for approval.  The key feature of the financing of 
the scheme is  that interest and principal repayments relating to the capital cost of the 
development are repaid in full from rental income generated once the properties are let.  

 
4.4 The Council’s proposed larger bid to the HCA’s SOAHP 2016/21 programme would involve 

the creation of 173 new homes, 138 of which would be affordable and 35 for sale across 6 
sites. 
 
Indicative breakdown of costs  

 
Total programme cost £29.2m 
HCA Grant £5.24m 
Sales £7.4m 
Commuted sums/recycled 
capital receipts £1.7m 
Prudential Borrowing £14.7m 

 
 
4.4 Under the terms of the Government’s ‘New Homes Bonus’ scheme for every new 

residential property built the Council will receive the equivalent of the council tax for that 
property each year, for a number of years. This is enhanced slightly for each ‘affordable’ or 
‘social’ property that is built. The most recent provisional Local Government Financial 
Statement changed the way that New Homes Bonus will be paid.  Previously payments 
were received over a 6 year period.  The changes mean that bonuses generated will now 
only be paid over a 5 year period, reducing to a 4 year period by 2018/19.  Despite this, 
year on year the New Homes Bonus continues to be important to the Council as un-
ringfenced income. In assessing the financial implication of supporting the provision of new 
‘affordable’ housing the positive contribution from New Homes Bonus needs to be taken in 
to account.    

  
  
4.5 Contracts for the construction of the schemes involved in the 2016/21 programme will be 

procured individually.  This should assist with risk management of the overall programme 
and should open up opportunities for SME contractors to tender for the smaller contracts.  

 
 
4.6 Due to the size of the proposed schemes it is estimated that the total cost of each of the 
 schemes will exceed £2m.   
 
  
4.7 The Council has a number of options through which it can undertake procurement of 
 schemes of this nature and scale.  These range from open tender to the use of established 
 frameworks such as the HCA’s Delivery Partner Panel and Yor build, etc.  To date the 
 Council has successfully appointed contractors for the delivery of affordable housing 

Page 18



 

 schemes through both open tender and use of the HCA’s framework.  The Housing service 
 works closely with Procurement to determine the most appropriate method as each 
 scheme reaches this stage.   
 

In line with the Local Government Transparency Code these details of any procured 
contracts are published on the Council’s website on a quarterly basis as part of the 
Contracts and Grants Register. 

 
 
5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
5.1 The Council has developed a successful track record of delivering subsidised housing on 

sites in its ownership and the proposed 2016/21 Affordable Housing programme builds on 
this success.  It is nevertheless necessary to look in detail at the risks associated with each 
new project.  An exercise has been carried out to identify the risks associated with this 
development  programme and to put in place actions to mitigate these risks; the results of 
this exercise  are summarised below. 

  
 Financial Modelling  
 
 Risk - It is essential that the financial model used to appraise the development proposals is 
 robust and that it employs assumptions that are prudent and allow sufficient tolerance to 
 accommodate unanticipated variations.  
 

Mitigation – The model that has been developed for the proposed programme is based on 
that successfully utilised for the Council’s previous affordable housing developments.  
Colleagues from Finance have been consulted on the model and the programme has been 
discussed at PAG. 

 
 In order to ensure that the assumptions in relation to costs and income that are used to 
 populate the model are correct the Council will engage professional cost consultants and 
 local sale agents for each of the schemes where sales form part of delivery. 
 
 Sales Assumptions 
 
 Risk – The financial model is dependent upon surpluses generated from the sale of 
 properties. Should these assumptions be incorrect the viability of the project could be 
 compromised. 
 
 Mitigation –In order to ensure that assumptions regarding sales values are realistic and in 
 order to advise on the most appropriate sales strategy a local estate agent practice will be 
 engaged to advise the Authority for each of the schemes where sales form part of delivery. 
 
 Delivery 
 
 Risk – The Council is expected as part of the contract with the HCA to complete the 
 affordable rented units within a prescribed timeframe and the receipt of investment support 
 will be dependent upon delivering within this timeframe 
 
 Mitigation – the Council’s indicative programme anticipates that completion of the 
 affordable properties will be towards the end of the HCA’s 2016/21 programme with a 
 number of properties being competed in 2019/20 and the balance in 2020/21. This will 
 allow sufficient time to deliver the project within contractually agreed timescales.  
 

Page 19



 

  
5.2 Delivery of the Council’s Affordable Housing programme is governed by the Affordable 
 Housing Board.  Part of the Board’s role is to monitor and review the programmes risk 
 register on a quarterly basis. 
 
 
6. LEGAL APPRAISAL  
  
6.1 Legal Services have provided advice on the legal contract with the HCA for the delivery of 

all the HCA funded programmes and have ensured that the contracts have been entered 
into “under seal”. 

 
6.2 Legal Services also provide advice on all legal contracts entered into with contractors in 
 line with Contract Standing Orders. 
 
 
7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY  
 
 The Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) undertaken for the programme indicates that 
 there are no adverse equal rights implications.  The provision of new affordable housing in 
 the District will have a positive impact on those groups and individuals who suffer multiple 
 disadvantages associated with inadequate housing. 
 
7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS  
 
 All properties will be built to the Building Regulations as a minimum.  This will ensure that 

they are designed in such a way that they remain appropriate to the needs of current and 
future generations 

 
7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 
 The affordable properties that it is proposed the Council support will be constructed to the 

Building Regulations as a minimum and this will assist in meeting targets for the reduction 
in carbon emissions both in the District and nationally.  

 
 
7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  
 
 No community safety implications have been identified. 
 
 
7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT  
 
 No implications under the Human Rights Act have been identified. 
 
7.6 TRADE UNION 
 
 No Trade Union implications have been identified. 
 
7.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 

Page 20



 

 
 The housing schemes set out in this report will deliver affordable housing on sites 

throughout the District. 
 
 
8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS  
 
 None. 
 
 
9. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
9.1 That members note the report. 
 
10. APPENDICES 
 
 None 
 
11. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS  
 
 None 
 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Report of the Chair of the Regeneration and Economy 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to the meeting to be 
held on Tuesday 26 September 2017 

H 
 
 
Subject:   
 
Regeneration and Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 
2017-18 
 
 
Summary statement: 
 
This report presents the Committee’s Work Programme 2017-18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cllr Adrian Farley 
Chair – Regeneration and Economy 
O&S Committee 
 

Portfolio:   
Regeneration, Planning & Transport 
Education, Employment and Skills 
Environment, Sport & Culture 
 

Report Contact:  Licia Woodhead 
Overview and Scrutiny Lead 
Phone: (01274) 432119 
E-mail: licia.woodhead@bradford.gov.uk 

  
 

 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7/



 

1. Summary 
1.1 This report presents the Committee’s Work Programme 2017-18. 
 
2. Background 
2.1 Each Overview and Scrutiny Committee is required by the Constitution of the 

Council to prepare a work programme (Part 3E – Overview and Scrutiny Procedure 
Rules, Para 1.1). 

 
3. Report issues 
3.1 Appendix 1 of this report presents the Work Programme for 2017-18.   
 
3.2 Work planning cycle 

Best practice published by the Centre for Public Scrutiny suggests that ‘work 
programming should be a continuous process’.  It is important to regularly review 
work programmes so that important or urgent issues that come up during the year 
are able to be scrutinised.  In addition, at a time of limited resources, it should also 
be possible to remove projects which have become less relevant or timely.  For this 
reason, it is proposed that the Committee’s work programme be regularly reviewed 
by Members throughout the municipal year. 

 
4. FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE APPRAISAL 

None 
 
5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 

None 
 
6. LEGAL APPRAISAL 

None 
 
7. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 None 
 
8. RECOMMENDATIONS 
8.1 That the Work programme 2017-18 continues to be regularly reviewed during the 

year. 
 
9. APPENDICES 
9.1 Appendix 1 – Regeneration & Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work 

Programme 2017-18 
 
 
 

Page 24



 Democratic Services - Overview and Scrutiny 
 Regeneration and Economy O &S Committee 
 Scrutiny Lead: Licia Woodhead tel - 43 2119 
 Work Programme 2017/18 
 Agenda  Description Report  
 Tuesday, 10th October 2017 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 26/09/2017. Report deadline 28/09/2017. 
 1) West Yorkshire Combined Authority and Leeds City  A joint meeting of Regen, Corporate and Environment O&S Committees  Jamie Saunders 
 Region will consider a report on the West Yorkshire Combined Authority and  
 Leeds City Region. 

 Tuesday, 24th October 2017 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 09/10/2017. Report deadline 10/10/2017. 
 1) Estate Management The Committee will receive an update report on the Estate Management Ben Middleton 
  Service. 
 2) One City Park The Committee will receive a progress report on the One City Park  Shelagh O'Neill 
 project. 
 3) Former Odeon Building The Committee will receive an update report on the former Odeon  Shelagh O'Neill 
 building. 
 4) Regeneration and Economy O&S Committee Work  The Committee will consider its Work Programme and make changes as Licia Woodhead 
 Programme  necessary. 

 Tuesday, 14th November 2017 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 30/10/2017. Report deadline 31/10/2017. 
 1) City Markets The Committee will receive an update report on the City Markets,  Colin Wolstenholme 
 including details of the consultant's findings. 
 2) City Centre Regeneration The Committee will receive an update report on the regeneration of the  Steve Hartley 
 City Centre 
 3) Business Support Programmes /  Initiatives The Committee will receive a report on the current business support  Shelagh O'Neill 
 initiatives and programmes available. 
 4) Regeneration and Economy O&S Committee Work  The Committee will consider its Work Programme and make changes as Licia Woodhead 
 Programme  necessary. 

 Tuesday, 19th December 2017 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 04/12/2017. Report deadline 07/12/2017. 
 1) Regeneration in Shipley The Committee will receive a report on regeneration issues in the  
 Shipley area. 

 22nd August 2017 Page 1 of 3 

P
age 25



 Regeneration and Economy O &S Committee 
 Scrutiny Lead: Licia Woodhead tel - 43 2119 
 Work Programme 2017/18 
 Agenda  Description Report  
 Tuesday, 19th December 2017 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 04/12/2017. Report deadline 07/12/2017. 
 2) Regeneration in Keighley The Committee will receive a report on regeneration issues in the  Paul North 
 Keighley area. 
 3) Regeneration and Economy O&S Committee Work  The Committee will consider its Work Programme and make changes as Licia Woodhead 
 Programme  necessary. 

 Tuesday, 23rd January 2018 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 08/01/2018. Report deadline 11/01/2018. 
 1) Active Bradford The Committee will receive the annual update on the Active Bradford  Zuby Hamard 
 Strategy. 
 2) Cultural Strategy The Committee will receive an update report which will include  Bobsie Robinson 
 information on how data is collected and analysed. 
 3) Canal Road Corridor Urban Village The Committee will receive an update on the progress of the Canal  Julian Jackson 
 Road Corridor Scheme 
 4) Regeneration and Economy O&S Committee Work  The Committee will consider its Work Programme and make changes as Licia Woodhead 
 Programme  necessary. 

 Tuesday, 20th February 2018 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 05/02/2018. Report deadline 08/02/2018. 
 1) Housing Standards The Committee will receive an update report on the work of the  Julie Rhodes 
 Housing Standards team. 
 2) Empty Homes The Committee will receive an update report on the work of the Empty  Julie Rhodes 
 Homes team, including progress against the Empty Homes Action Plan. 
 3) Regeneration and Economy O&S Committee Work  The Committee will consider its Work Programme and make changes as Licia Woodhead 
 Programme  necessary. 

 Tuesday, 6th March 2018 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 1) Fire Safety 

 Tuesday, 13th March 2018 at National Science and Media Museum. 
 Chair's briefing 26/02/2018. Report deadline 27/02/2018. 
 1) National Science and Media Museum The Committee will receive a progress report on the work of the  Jo Quinton-Tulloch 
 National Science and Media Museum. 

 22nd August 2017 Page 2 of 3 

P
age 26



 Regeneration and Economy O &S Committee 
 Scrutiny Lead: Licia Woodhead tel - 43 2119 
 Work Programme 2017/18 
 Agenda  Description Report  
 Tuesday, 13th March 2018 at National Science and Media Museum. 
 Chair's briefing 26/02/2018. Report deadline 27/02/2018. 
 2) Get Bradford Working The Committee will receive a progress report on the Get Bradford  Phil Hunter 
 Working programme. 
 3) Skills for Work The Committee will receive a report on the provision of adult and  Phil Hunter 
 community learning 

 Tuesday, 10th April 2018 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 20/03/2018. Report deadline 22/03/2018. 
 1) City Centre Regeneration The Committee will receive an update report on the regeneration of the  Steve Hartley 
 City Centre. 

 22nd August 2017 Page 3 of 3 

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 HOUSING AND HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY - PROGRESS UPDATE
	6 THE COUNCIL'S AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAMME
	7 REGENERATION AND ECONOMY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2017-18
	REC26SepDocH APP


